
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
 

EASTERN DIVISION
 

IN RE: CLOZAPINE ANTITRUST ) MOL Docket No. 874 
LITIGATION ) 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 

No. 90 C 6412 

Consolidated for Pretrial 
Proceedings with the Following 
Actions That Have Been Trans
ferred from the Southern 
District of New York: 

90 Civ. 7724, 8055, 8060, 
8062-8065, 8067, 8069, 8071, 
8073-8077, 8079-8082, 8084, 
8086-8087, 8089, 8092: 

This Document Relates To ) 91 Civ. 0244, 0921, 1043, 
All Captioned Docket Numbers ) 

)
)
)
) 

1165, 1219-1220, 1392, 1673,
 
1813-1814 

Honorable Harry D. Leinenweber 

DEFENDANT CAREMARK INC.' S PRELIMINARY REPORT 

Pursuant to paragraph 3(c) of this Court's Order No. I, 

dated April 16, 1991,1/ Caremark Inc. ("Caremark") respectfully 

submits its Preliminary Report. This Preliminary Report provides 

the status of the pleadings, motions and discovery with respect 

to the actions transferred to this Court for coordinated and 

consolidated pretrial proceedings by the Judicial Panel on Multi 

district Litigation. This Preliminary Report also sets forth 

Caremark's understanding of the more important factual and legal 

1/ Caremark did not receive Order No. I until Thursday, 
April 25, 1991, one day before the original filing deadline of 
April 26, 1991. 



issues involved in the litigation.lI 

I 

STATUS OF PLEADINGS AND MOTIONS 

A. Actions Filed By Attorneys General 

Between December 1990 and March 1991, the attorneys 

general of 32 states and the District of Columbia (collectively 

"the states") filed virtually identical complaints in the United 

states District Court for the southern District of New York (See 

Schedule of Actions attached as Exhibit A).1/ The complaints al 

lege that defendant Sandoz Pharmaceuticals Corporation ("Sandoz") 

and/or Caremark violated sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1 and 2, in connection with the distribution and sale 

of CLOZARIL~, Sandoz' trade name for the schizophrenia drug, 

~ As noted in the Court's Order, these statements are not 
binding, will not waive any claims or defenses that Caremark has 
and cannot be offered into evidence against Caremark's interests. 

1/ On December 18, 1990, the attorneys general of California, 
Colorado, Connecticut, Iowa, Florida, Maine, Maryland, Mas
sachusetts, Minnesota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, North 
Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, 
Virginia, Washington, West Virginia and Wisconsin filed their 
complaints against Sandoz and Caremark. On January 10, 1991, the 
attorney general of South Dakota filed his action. By Order
dated January 24, 1991, these actions were consolidated and reas
signed to United States District Court Judge John F. Keenan in 
the Southern District of New York. In February and March, 1991, 
the attorneys general of Alabama, Arizona, Idaho, Kansas, 
Delaware, Missouri, Oklahoma, South Carolina and the District of 
Columbia filed actions which are virtually identical to those 
actions which were previously filed. Although the April 9, 1991 
transfer order of the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation 
transferred only 23 of the 33 actions filed by the attorneys gen
eral of various states, it is expected that the 10 "tag along" 
actions filed in 1991 will be transferred shortly to this Court 
for coordinated and consolidated pretrial proceedings. 
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clozapine.iI 

On January 25, 1991, Sandoz filed its answers to the 

States' complaints. 2J On January 28, 1991, Caremark filed a 

motion to dismiss and a supporting memorandum of points and 

authorities with respect to the 24 then pending actions.2I On 

March 15, 1991, the States filed their response to Caremark's 

motion to dismiss, and on April 5, 1991, Caremark filed its reply 

memorandum in support of its motion to dismiss. Caremark's 

motion to dismiss has been fully briefed by the parties and is 

ripe for this Court's consideration and disposition. 

B. Dauer v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals. Inc. et al. 

On November 2, 1990, Victor Dauer filed an action 

styled Dauer v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals. Inc •. et al., No. 90 C 

6412, in the United States District Court for the Northern Dis

trict of Illinois. As in the States' actions, Dauer alleges that 

Sandoz and Caremark violated section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 1, in the distribution and sale of CLOZARIL~. On Novem

ber 8, 1990, Dauer amended his complaint to assert claims on 

behalf of a nationwide class of all persons who have purchased 

iI The states also have asserted various pendent state law 
claims arising under the laws of their respective states. 

2J As new "tag along" actions were filed by other attorneys 
general, Sandoz also filed answers to those new complaints. 

~ As new "tag along" actions were filed by other attorneys 
general, Caremark moved to dismiss those new complaints based 
upon substantially the same grounds stated in its earlier motion 
to dismiss. On March 7, 1991, Caremark moved to dismiss the com
plaints of Arizona, Idaho, Kansas, Delaware, Missouri and the 
District of Columbia: on April 1, 1991, Caremark moved to dismiss 
the complaints of Alabama, Oklahoma and South Carolina. 
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CLOZARIL~. On December 17, 1990, Dauer filed a second amended 

complaint, adding a monopolization claim purporting to arise 

under section 2 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2. Sandoz filed 

its answer to Dauer's Second Amended Complaint on January 25, 

1991, and Caremark filed its answer on February 19, 1991. No 

motions are currently pending before the Court. 

C. Newell v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals, et al. 

On December 3, 1990, Richard Newell ("Newell"), on 

behalf of a purported nationwide class, filed a complaint styled 

Newell v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals. et al., 90 Civ. 7724, in the 

united States District Court for the Southern District of New 

York. Like the States, Newell alleges that defendants Sandoz and 

Caremark violated Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, in 

the distribution and sale of CLOZARIL~. On January 4, 1991, 

Newell filed a motion to certify a class consisting of "all per

sons in the united States who are purchasers of Clozaril or for 

whom Clozaril was recommended by a medical practitioner and were 

unable to purchase Clozaril as a result of the 'Clozaril Patient 

Management System'". (Newell Motion For Class certification 

filed January 4, 1991) 

Sandoz filed its answer to Newell's Second Amended Com

plaint on January 25, 1991. On January 28, 1991, pursuant to 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6), Caremark moved before 

the united States District Court for the Southern District of New 

York to dismiss Newell's complaint for failing to state a claim 

upon which relief can be granted. On March 26, 1991, Newell 
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filed a memorandum in opposition to Caremark's motion to dismiss 

("Response"). In his Response, Newell stated an intention to 

replead or delete certain allegations of his complaint, some of 

which relate to the composition of the class that Newell seeks to 

represent. According to the agreed briefing schedule, Caremark 

was to file its reply memorandum on or before April 16, 1991. 

However, because Newell advised caremark that he intends to amend 

his complaint on or before June 3, 1991, the parties agreed that 

Caremark would seek leave to withdraw its motion to dismiss. On 

April 23, 1991, Caremark filed an agreed motion to withdraw 

without prejudice its motion to dismiss. This motion is 

currently pending before the Court. 

II
 

STATUS OF DISCOVERY
 

A. Actions Filed By Attorneys General 

On February 25, 1991, the States served both Sandoz and 

Caremark with their Joint First Discovery Requests which included 

interrogatories, requests for documents and requests to admit. 

Pursuant to the states' document request, caremark has made 

available over 30,000 Caremark documentsl! for the States' 

inspection. Caremark was in the process of preparing its 

responses to the States' outstanding interrogatories and requests 

to admit when this Court stayed all discovery on April 12, 1991. 

l! On June 29, 1990 and July 2, 1990, Caremark provided the 
Minnesota Attorney General with more than 5,000 documents pur
suant to his investigative demand. On April 10, 1991, caremark 
provided the States with an additional 25,000 Caremark documents. 
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Neither caremark nor Sandoz has served any discovery on the 

States. 

B. Dauer v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals. Inc. et al, 

On November 12, 1990, Dauer served both Sandoz and 

Caremark with his First Request for Production of Documents and 

his First Set of Interrogatories. On January 10, 1991, Caremark 

responded to Dauer's interrogatories and produced to Dauer over 

30,000 Caremark documents on or about January 28, 1991. Caremark 

and Dauer also have convened two Local Rule 12(k) conferences in 

order to resolve their outstanding differences concerning Dauer's 

discovery. Neither Caremark nor Sandoz has served any discovery 

on Dauer. 

C. Newell v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals. et al, 

On January 11, 1991, Newell served both Sandoz and 

Caremark with his First Request for Production of Documents and 

his First Set of Interrogatories. Caremark has produced for 

Newell's review the same 30,000 documents that Caremark has pro

duced to Dauer. Caremark has not responded to Newell's inter

rogatories because JUdge Keenan stayed all non-document discovery 

on February 19, 1991. Neither Caremark nor Sandoz has served any 

discovery on Newell. 
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III 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT OF FACTS 

These proceedings involve the patented new schizophre

nia drug clozapine, trade name CLOZARIL~, a pharmaceutical devel

oped, manufactured and marketed by Sandoz. Although CLOZARIL~ 

treatment is superior to schizophrenia treatment with standard 

neuroleptics for many patients, the drug poses a potentially 

fatal threat to the immune system of certain patients. Some 

users of CLOZARIL~ can develop agranulocytosis, a medical condi

tion resulting from acute suppression of the bone marrow's abil 

ity to produce white blood cells. This condition can result in 

death by infection unless it is detected early and therapy is 

interrupted. 

Because of the risks associated with CLOZARIL~ treat

ment, a patient's white blood count must be monitored on a regu

lar basis. The United States Food and Drug Administration 

("FDA"), whose approval was required before CLOZARIL~ could be 

distributed in the united States, recognized these safety 

concerns: 

Without a means of assuring procedures for 
early detection [of agranulocytosis], there 
was serious question about whether the bene
fits of clozapine, although considerable, 
outweighed its risks, and thus whether the 
drug could be approved. 

(Newell complaint! 33, quoting Carl C. Peak, M.D., Director of 

the Center for Drug Education and Research of the FDA) Accord

ingly, the FDA required that blood monitoring be reliably linked 
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tQ the use Qf clQzapine as a cQnditiQn Qf apprQval Qf the drug.~ 

On OctQber 2, 1989, SandQZ and Caremark agreed that 

Caremark WQuld distribute CLOZARIL~ in accQrdance with SandQz' 

CLOZARIL~ Patient Management System- ("CPMS"). CPMS is a CQmpre

hensive patient mQnitQring and testing system and prQtQcQl devel-

Qped by SandQz tQ address certain requirements impQsed by the FDA 

and SandQz regarding patient safety in the sale and distributiQn 

Qf CLOZARIL~.2J (See Exhibits Band C attached heretQ) It is 

this cQmmercial arrangement which the attQrneys general Qf 32 

states and the District Qf CQlumbia, Dauer and Newell 

(cQllectively "plaintiffs") have alleged, inter alia, is an ille

gal tying arrangement and price fixing agreement between SandQz 

and Caremark that viQlates federal and state antitrust laws.!QJ 

~ FDA apprQval fQr new drugs alsQ includes apprQval Qf their 
labelling. The FDA's apprQval Qf SandQz' labelling fQr CLOZARIL~ 
was cQntingept upQn distributiQn Qf CLOZARIL~ in accQrdance with 
the CLOZARIL Patient Management System- ("CPMS"): 

We aCKnQwledge yQur intentiQn tQ market and 
distribute CLOZARIL~ Qnly under the CPMS 
• • . please alsQ be aware that the prQpQsed 
draft labelling fQr CLOZARIL~ specifies in 
several places that CLOZARIL~ WQuld be avail 
able Qnly under this restricted distributiQn 
system. Consequently. CLOZARIL~ could be 
considered misbranded if it were to be made 
available outside the CPMS. 

(Newell Complaint! 33, quoting Carl C. Peak, M.D., Director of 
the Center for Drug Education and Research of the FDA, quoting 
approval letter issued by FDA for CLOZARIL~) (emphasis added) 

2J As part of FDA's approval of CLOZARIL~ in September 1989, 
Sandoz received the exclusive right to market clozapine in the 
United States for five years. 

~ It is not clear from their complaints whether the States and 
Dauer intend to rely on CPMS or the Commercial Agreement as the 
basis for their monopolization claims under Section 2 of the 

8
 



Although plaintiffs frame their complaints under the Sherman Act, 

15 U.S.C. §§ 1 and 2, their real grievances appear to be the cost 

of CLOZARIL- treatment and the required linkage between CLOZARIL· 

dispensing and blood testing, neither of which can be construed 

to constitute an antitrust violation. 

IV 

CRITICAL ISSUES 

Some of the more important issues raised by the plain

tiffs' complaints include: (i) whether Caremark is an agent of 

Sandoz and therefore incapable of conspiring with Sandoz, Care

mark's principal; (ii) the effect of the FDA's regulatory 

requirement that CLOZARIL- be distributed in accordance with 

CPMS; (iii) the reasonableness and efficacy of CPMS in the face 

of life threatening side effects to the patient population; and 

(iv) whether the commercial arrangement between sandoz and 

Caremark can constitute monopoly conduct under Section 2 of the 

Sherman Act. 

A threshold issue is whether Sandoz and Caremark are 

separate economic entities with respect to the distribution of 

CLOZARIL-, and thus capable of an antitrust conspiracy that 

violates Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The allegations by the 

States and Newell establish that Caremark is Sandoz' agent, and, 

for that reason among others, Caremark moved to dismiss their 

complaints. If Caremark is Sandoz' agent, there can be no 

Sherman Act. As indicated in Caremark's motion to dismiss the 
States' complaints, the States' neither name nor attribute 
monopoly conduct to Caremark. Newell has not asserted a monopo
lization claim against either Sandoz or Caremark. 
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finding of illegal concerted conduct. The economic relationship 

between Sandoz and Caremark, as defined by the substantive terms 

of their October 2, 1989 agreement and the commercial realities 

of CPMS, confirms Caremark's position that an agency relationship 

exists between Sandoz and Caremark. 

Caremark also maintains that plaintiffs will be unable 

to establish a Section 1 price fixing or tying claim against 

Caremark for anyone of the following additional reasons: 

(1)	 the alleged arrangement does not involve 
"separate" products or services but instead con
cerns integral components of a larger product or 
service comprising a single market item; 

(2)	 no CLOZARIL~ patient has been coerced into pur
chasing a separate product or service that he or 
she either would not have otherwise purchased or 
would have purchased from a different supplier; 

(3)	 the arrangement has no anticompetitive effect in 
any purported market(s) for blood testing, drug 
dispensing and patient record maintenance; 

(4)	 Caremark has not expressly or impliedly agreed to 
follow a suggested retail price, nor has sandoz 
sought adherence to such a price; and 

(5)	 Caremark is not a seller or reseller of the 
alleged products or services. 

A second overriding issue in this litigation is the 

reasonableness and efficacy of CPMS in light of the significant 

risks associated with CLOZARIL~ therapy. Even if plaintiffs 

could establish the elements of a tying arrangement, this court 

must weigh the legitimate business and safety justifications for 

CPMS against any alleged anticompetitive effects. Because of the 
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serious medical risks associated with CLOZARIL~ treatment, the 

requirements imposed by CPMS far outweigh any alleged 

anticompetitive effects. 

Another important issue which must be addressed is the 

effect of the FDA's approval of the distribution of CLOZARIL~ in 

accordance with CPMS. Even if the plaintiffs could establish the 

elements of a Sherman Act claim, Sandoz and Caremark are immune 

from antitrust liability. To the extent CPMS and/or blood 

testing to monitor white blood cell counts is required in the 

marketing of clozapine, that requirement was imposed by the FDA 

acting pursuant to federal law, and any such requirement is 

thereby immune from attack under antitrust law. Moreover, to the 

extent plaintiffs' claims are based on Sandoz' applications, 

communications or proposals to the FDA for approval of CLOZARIL~, 

Caremark maintains that such actions constitute lawful 

petitioning activity that is Constitutionally protected from 

antitrust scrutiny. 

Finally, there are several important issues that relate 

to plaintiffs' purported monopolization claims. To the extent 

that plaintiffs have alleged conspiracy to monopolize claims 

against Caremark under Section 2 of the Sherman Act, the question 

of whether Sandoz and Caremark are economically independent and 

capable of conspiracy is again at issue. other issues raised by 

plaintiffs' purported section 2 claims include: 

(1)	 whether Caremark has monopolized, attempted 
to monopolize or conspired to monopolize a 
defined relevant product and geographic market: 
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(2)	 whether "monopoly leveraging" is recognized 
by the law of this or any other Circuit and 
whether plaintiffs can state and have stated 
such a claim: and 

(3)	 whether Sandoz' alleged monopoly of clozapine 
is immune from antitrust scrutiny because Sandoz 
has an exclusive license to market clozapine. 

Dated this 30th day of April, 1991.
 

submitted,
 

Michae 
Michael 
Michael J. Abernathy 
BELL, BOYD & LLOYD 
Three First National Plaza 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 372-1121 

Attorneys for Defendant 
CAREMARK INC. 
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SCHEPULE OF ACTIONS BY STATES' ATTORNEYS GENERAL
 

STATE 

Alabama 

Arizona 

California 

Colorado 

Connecticut 

Delaware 

District of 
Coll1llllJia 

NAME OF CASE 

State of Alabama 
James H. Evans, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Arizona 
Grant Woods, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of California 
John K. Van de Kamp, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Colorado 
Duane Woodard, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of Connecticut 
Clarine Nardi Riddle, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of Delaware 
Charles M. Oberly, III, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

District of Columbia 
John Payton, 
Acting Corporation Counsel v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

DOCKET NUMBER 

91 CIV 1813 

91 CIV 0921 

90 CIV 8060 

90 CIV 8079 

90 CIV 8062 

91 CIV 1219 

91 CIV 1220 



,
 

Florida 

Idaho 

Iowa 

Kansas 

Maine 

Maryland 

Massachusetts 

state of Florida 
Robert A. Butterworth, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of Idaho 
Larry Echohawk, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Iowa 
Thomas Miller, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Kansas 
Robert T. Stephan, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Maine 
James E. Tierney, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Maryland 
J. Joseph CUrran, Jr., 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
James M. Shannon, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

90 CIV 8063 

91 CIV 1043 

90 CIV 8064 

91 CIV 1165 

90 CIV 8065 

90 CIV 8067 

90 CIV 8069 
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Minnesota 

Missouri 

New Hampshire 

New Jersey 

New York 

North Carolina 

Ohio 

State of Minnesota 
Hubert H. Humphrey, III, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of Missouri 
William L. Webster, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of New Hampshire 
John P. Arnold, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of New Jersey 
Robert J. Del Tufo, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of New York 
Robert Abrams, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of North Carolina 
Lacy H. Thornburg, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Ohio 
Anthony J. Celebrezze, Jr., 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

90 CIV 8055 

91 CIV 1392 

90 CIV 8071 

90 CIV 8073 

90 CIV 8074 

90 CIV 8092 

90 CIV 8075 
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Oklahoma 

oregon 

Pennsylvania 

South Carolina 

South Dakota 

Tennessee 

Texas 

State of Oklahoma 
Robert H. Henry, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Oregon 
Dave Frohnmayer, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Ernest D. Preate, Jr., 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of South Carolina 
T. Travis Medlock, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of South Dakota 
Mark Barnett, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Tennessee 
Charles W. Burson, 
Attorney General , Reporter 
v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Texas 
Jim Mattox, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

91 Civ. 1673 

90 CIV 8076 

90 CIV 8077 

91 civ. 1814 

91 CIV 0244 

90 CIV 8080 

90 CIV 8081 
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utah 

Virginia 

Washington 

west virginia 

Wisconsin 

State of Utah 
Paul Van Dam, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Virginia 
Mary Sue Terry, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of washington 
Kenneth o. Eikenberry, 
Attorney General v. 
SandoZ Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of West Virginia 
Roger W. Tompkins, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Wisconsin 
Don Hanaway, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

90 CIV 8082 

90 CIV 8084 

90 CIV 8086 

90 CIV 8087 

90 CIV 8089 
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'1--" 'ood Ind Drug Adm1n1strat1on 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE SUlan Crulln - (301) ~S-SZII 
Oct. 3, "81 (HofII) - (301) 314-'504 

Thl Food Ind Drug Adm1n1strat10n today announCld approval at an 

ant1psychot1c drug cal',d clozap1nl to trlat s,v.rl schizophr,nia 1n 

pati.nts who 'ail to r,spond to currlntly availabl, drugl. 

Clozap1n, 1s not a cur" but 1t may help pr~v1oUI'y unr.sponlivi 

pat1,nt. to 11v. mort satisfy1ng and product1vI livil. About 200,000 plOpll 

-.y bl cand1dat.s for the drug. 

Howlvlr, blcaus. thl drug can produc, a blood dilord,r callid 

agranulocytol1s, thl approvld lablling .ays it should bl prl.crib.d only tor 

pattlnt. who havi not rlspondld to othlr, 11" toxic thlrapy. In addition, 

a ,plc1al t.sting program hal b.ln dlvtsld: Ahome health carl company tach 

wllk will both dlliv.r th, pr.scr1bld clozapinl tablets to pati.nts and 

coll.ct blood slmpl.s to bl I.nt to a national laboratory tor analy.'" 

If thl r,.ult, indicatl that a patilnt mult stop taking thl ~ru,. hi. or 

h.r doctor will bl not1ft,d ,..'diat.~y by phonl. 

Clolapinl tl alloctatld with a rat. of agranulocytol1. of about onl 

Plrclnt. In U.S. tlSt. ot thl drug, 15 cas.s of thl blood disorder occurr,d 

but Wlrl caught larly by t.lting and r,v,r.,d. Mowlvlr, ,v.n with thl 

carlful -anitor1ng systl. plannld, som. fraction of pattent. who divilop 

Igranulocyto.'. aay die. 

-Th••lv.r1ty and hop",.sn,sl of unr.mitting chronic .ch1zophrlnia wa• 

.-or,



- ...... - .. '" 

Pagt 2. 

aft 1mportant factor in tht dtci.10n to approve clozap1n.,a FDA ~'110ntr 

Frank E. Young, M.D., Ph.D•• sa1d. -Ind'td, b.caul. of tht s.r10us r1.ks 

aSlociat.d with its US'. w. art caut10n1ng phy.1c1an. that th1. drug should 

~. pr.scr1b.d only for pat1.nts who have not r.spond.d to at l.ast two 

r.g1mens of Itandard drug th.rapy.M 

M1thout an .ffect1Y. tr.atm.nt. sch1zoph~.n1a can b. totally 

incapac1tat1ng. Unable to think coh.r.ntly, pati.nts w1th chron1c 

sch'zophr.n1a art oft.n 1ncapabl. of caring for thtm..'YII and l1vin, 

1nd,plnd.ntly. Mor.oYlr. many pat1.nts "v. 1n continual f.ar and d1str•••• 

thr.attntd by hallucinat10n. and plagued by d"usions. 

C1ozapin. was first .Yaluated in the tarly 19lOs. but its d.ytlopllnt as 

an antipsychotic drug in tht Un1t.d Statts was 'arg.'Y abandon.d in tht 

.id-ll'Os wh.n it was discov.r.d to caus. agranulocytos1.. Th' drul i. also 

al.oc1at.d w1th a high risk of s.1zur••• 

Int,rtst was ktpt al1Y' by occasional report. of remarkabll r'lults 1n 

1011 prlY10usly unr.spon.1v. pat1tnts. Thl.t report. ,ncouragld the drug'. 

sponsor to submit a marklting application. but FDA turnld down the 'n1tial 

appltcation 1n 1984 b,caust it conta1nld no tYid,nc, that the drug, wh1ch 

was cl,arly IOrl toxic. was suplr10r to ava11abl. drugs. How'v", FDA 

Incouragld the ..nufactuTlr to continu. the study of clozap1ne to det,~in. 

if it could h.,p sch'zophr,nic pat1.nts unr.spons1v, to standard 

ant1psychot1c drugs. Th1s study was suce••sful. 

Tht drug wil' be sold undlr the trade n&a' Clozaril throulh the Clozar" 

Patient Manag,m,nt Sy.tem by Sandoz Pharmac.ut'ca' Corporation of East 

Hanoy", N.J. .' 

l1li 

.. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Michael A. Forti, hereby certify that true and cor

rect copies of Defendant Caremark Inc.'s Preliminary Report have 

been served upon: 

Perry Goldberg, Esq. 
Specks & Goldberg 
10 South Wacker Drive 
Suite 350 
Chicago, Illinois 60606 

by Messenger; 

James Spencer, Esq. Howard J. Sedran, Esq. 
Assistant Attorney General Levin, Fishbein, 
State of Minnesota Sedran & Berman 
117 University Avenue Suite 600 
200 Ford Building 320 Walnut Street 
st. Paul, Minnesota 55155 Philadelphia, PA 19106 

Daniel R. Shulman, Esq. 
Gray, Plant, Mooty, Mooty & Bennett P.A 
3400 City Center 
33 South sixth Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 

by Air Courier; and 

all other parties on the attached service list by United States 

Mail, first class postage prepaid, this 30th day of April, 1991. 

for 
INC. 
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WECHSLER, SKIRNICK, HARWOOD 

HALEBIAN & FEFFER 
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18th Floor 
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Guido Saveri, Esq. 
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Department of Justice 
820 North French Street 
Wilmington, DE 19801 

Stuart Cameron 
Assistant Corporation Counsel 
JUdiciary Plaza 
450 5th Street, N.W., Rm. 8152 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

-3



Jerome Hoffman, Assistant Attorney General 
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SCHEDULE OF ACTIONS BY STATES' ATTORNEYS GENERAL
 

STATE 

Alabama 

Arizona 

California 

Colorado 

Connecticut 

Delaware 

District of 
Columbia 

NAME OF CASE 

State of Alabama 
James H. Evans, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Arizona 
Grant Woods, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of California 
John K. Van de Kamp, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
caremark Incorporated 

State of Colorado 
Duane Woodard, 
Attorney General v. 
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'11-41 rood and Drug Administration 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE Susan Cruzan - (01) 443-3215 
Oct. 3. 1981 (Homl> - (301) 314-1504 

Thl Food and Drug Administration today announCld approval of an 

antipsychotic drug cal lid clozap1nl to trlat SIYlrl sch1zophrln1a in 

pat1.nts who fa11 to r.lpond to curr.ntly ava1labl. druis. 

Clozapinl is not a cur., but 1t may hllp pr~Y10usly unrispon.'vi 

pat1lnt. to "v. morl sat1sfy1ng and product1vl 11YI.. About 200.000 ptopll 

~ bl cand1datls for thl drug. 

Howlver. bicausl thl drug can product a blood d1sordlr call.d 

agranulocytos1l. thl approv.d labll1ng 'lYs it should be pr.scr1bld only for 

p.t1lnts who have not rlspondld to other. llss tox1c thlrapy. In add,t10n. 

a ,plc1., tlst1ng program hal bl,n dlv1s.d: Ahome hlalth cart company lach 

wllk w1ll both dll1vlr th, pr,scrib.d clozap1nl tabllts to pat11nts and 

collict blood sample. to bt .Int to a national laboratory for analysis. 

If the rlsult. 1nd1c.tt that. pat11nt must stop taking the~rul. h1. or 

htr doctor will b. not1f11d '''ld1atlly by phon•• 

e10zap'n, t. a••oct,tld with a rat. of .granulocytoI1. of about onl 

perclnt. In U.S. t ••ts of thl drug. 15 CII" of thl blood d1lordlr occurr.d 

but wtrt caught I,rly by t.lt1ng and r,versld. How.vlr. Iv.n with tht 

earlful lOft1tor1ng IYlt•• plann.d. 10m. fraction of pati.nts who d'v.'op 

.granulocytos' • .., d1t. 

-Thl I,vlr'ty and hop.'llsn,•• of unrlm1tt'ng chron'c sch1zophrln1a was 

-eott
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aft 1mportant factor in the d.cis1on to approve clozapint." rcA CoIInslion.r 

Frank E. Young. M.D •• Ph.D., said. AInd••d, b.caus. of the s.r10Us risks 

assoc1at.d with its us•• w. ar. caution1ng phys1c1ans that this drug should 

b. pr.scr1b.d only tor pat1.nts who havt not r.spond.d to at '.ast two 

r.gim.ns of standard drug th.rapy.M 

W1thout an tffect1vt tr.atment, sch1zophr.n1a can bt totally 

incapacitating. Unable to think co~.r.ntty. patients w1th chron1c 

sch1zophr.n1a ar. oft.n 1ncapable of caring for th.ms.'v.s and l1v'ng 

1nd.p.nd.ntly. Mor.ov.r. many patients l1v. in cont1nual f.ar and d1str.ss, 

thr.atentd by halluc1nations and plagued by d"usions. 

C1ozap1nt was first tvaluated 1n tht t.rly 1960s. but its d,vtlopment as 

1ft antipsychotic drug in the Un,t.d Stat.s was '.rgely abandon.d in the 

.id-ll70s wh.n it was d1scov.red to caUII agranulocytosis. Th. drug 11 Ilso 

assoc1at.d with a high risk of s.izur.s. 

Int.r.st was ktpt al1v. by occasional rtports of rtmarkabl. r'lults in 

sa.. prtv10usly unr.sponsivt pat1tnts. Thes. reports .ncourag.d the drug's 

sponlor to lubmit a marketing app11clt1on. but FDA turned down the initial 

apP"cation 1n 1984 b.eaus. it conta1n.d no .vid.nc. that the drug. wh1ch 

WlS cl.arly mor. toxic. wa. sUD.r1or to ava"abl. drugl. How.v.r. ~ 

Incouragtd the ..nu'actur.r to cont1nu. the study 0' clozap1nl to dttl~1n. 

" 1t could ~'" sch'zophr.nic pat1.ntl unr.lponl'v, to standard 

ant'plychot1c drugs. Th's stUdy WII lucelslful. 

thl drug wil' bt sold und.r the trade name Clozar11 throuvh the el0ZIr1, 

Pat'.nt Managll.nt SYltl. by Sandoz Pharmac.ut1ca' Corporation of East 

Hanov.r, N.J. ~ 
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f the Attorneys for 
dant CAREMARK 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Michael A. Forti, hereby certify that true and cor

rect copies of Defendant Caremark Inc.'s Preliminary Report have 

been served upon: 

Perry Goldberg, Esq. 
Specks & Goldberg 
10 South Wacker Drive 
Suite 350 
chicago, Illinois 60606 

by Messenger; 

James Spencer, Esq. Howard J. Sedran, Esq. 
Assistant Attorney General Levin, Fishbein, 
State of Minnesota Sedran & Berman 
117 University Avenue Suite 600 
200 Ford Building 320 Walnut Street 
st. Paul, Minnesota 55155 Philadelphia, PA 19106 

Daniel R. Shulman, Esq. 
Gray, Plant, Mooty, Mooty & Bennett P.A 
3400 City Center 
33 South Sixth Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 

by Air Courier; and 

all other parties on the attached service list by United States 

Mail, first class postage prepaid, this 30th day of April, 1991. 

INC.
 



SERVICE LIST
 

COUDsel for Plaintiff Victor Dauer: 

Perry Goldberg, Esq.
 
Granvil I. Specks, Esq.
 
SPECKS & GOLDBERG
 
10 S. Wacker Drive
 
Suite 3500
 
Chicago, IL 60606
 

Gary L. Specks, Esq.
 
Richard A. Sloan, Esq.
 
ALTHEIMER & GRAY
 
10 S. Wacker Drive
 
suite 4000
 
Chicago, IL 60606
 

Michael J. Freed, Esq.
 
MUCH, SHELIST, FREED, DENENBERG,
 

AMENT & EIGER, P.C. 
200 N. LaSalle Street 
Suite 2100 
Chicago, IL 60601 

Robert A. Skirnick, Esq. 
WECHSLER, SKIRNICK, HARWOOD 

HALEBIAN & FEFFER 
555 Madison Avenue 
18th Floor 
New York, NY 10022 

Steven J. Greenfogel, Esq. 
MEREDITH & COHEN 
117 S. 17th Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 

Guido Saver!, Esq. 
SAVERI & SAVERI 
One Market Plaza - 39th Floor 
Spear Street Tower 
San Francisco, CA 94104 



COUDs.l for PlaiD~iff Riohard ••••11: 

Arnold Levin, Esq.
 
Howard J. Sedran, Esq.
 
Michael D. Fishbein, Esq.
 
LEVIN, FISHBEIN, SEDRAN & BERMAN
 
320 Walnut Street, suite 600
 
Philadelphia, PA 19106
 

Robert N. Kaplan, Esq.
 
Richard J. Kilsheimer, Esq.
 
KAPLAN & KILSHEIMER
 
685 Third Avenue
 
New York, NY 10017
 

Kathleen MUllen, Esq.
 
161 Downing Street
 
2nd Floor
 
Denver, CO 80218
 

Jerry S. Cohen, Esq.
 
Michael D. Hausfield, Esq.
 
Gary D. Hausfield, Esq.
 
COHEN, MILSTEIN, HAUSFIELD,
 

& TOLL 
1401 New York Avenue, N.W. 
suite 600 
Washington, D.C. 20005 
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Attorneys General: 

Marc Givhan 
Assistant Attorney General 
11 South Union street 
Montgomery, AL 36130 

H. Leslie Hall 
Chief Counsel 
Consumer Protection & Antitrust section 
1275 West Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Thomas Greene 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
1515 K Street, Suite 511 
P.O. Box 944255 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 

Barbara Motz, Deputy Attorney General 
Office of the Attorney General 
Department of Justice 
3580 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 90010 

James R. Lewis, Assistant Attorney General 
Business Regulation Unit 
Enforcement section 
110-16th street, 10th Floor 
Denver, CO 80202 

steven M. Rutstein 
Assistant Attorney General 
110 Sherman Street 
Hartford, CT 06105 

John J. Polk 
Deputy Attorney General 
Department of Justice 
820 North French Street 
Wilmington, DE 19801 

stuart Cameron 
Assistant Corporation Counsel 
JUdiciary Plaza 
450 5th Street, N.W., Rm. 8152 
Washington, D.C. 20001 
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Jerome Hoffman, Assistant Attorney General 
Chief, Antitrust Bureau 
2670 Executive Center Circle, w. 
sutton Building, suite 108 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Brett T. Delange, Deputy Attorney General 
Consumer Protection unit 
statehouse Mail, Room 113A 
Boise, ID 83720 

John R. Perkins, Deputy Attorney General 
Hoover state Office Building 
Des Moines, IA 50319 

John w. Campbell, Deputy Attorney General 
Kansas Judicial Center, 2nd Floor 
Topeka, KS 66612 

Francis E. Ackerman, Assistant Attorney General 
Consumer & Antitrust Division 
state House Station 6 
Augusta, ME 04333 

Ellen S. Cooper, Assistant Attorney General 
Deputy Chief, Antitrust Division 
200 st. Paul Place, 19th Floor 
Baltimore, MD 21202 

George K. Weber, Assistant Attorney General and 
Chief, Antitrust Division 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
One Ashburton Place 
Boston, MA 02108 

Thomas F. Pursell 
James Spencer 
Assistant Attorneys General 
117 University Avenue 
200 Ford Building 
st. Paul, MN 55155 
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Clayton S. Friedman, Assistant Attorney General 
Penntower Office Building 
3100 Broadway, Suite 609 
Kansas City, MO 64111 

Terry L. Robertson, 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
Consumer Protection and Antitrust Bureau 
25 capitol Street 
Concord, NH 03301 

Laurel A. Price, Deputy Attorney General 
Division of criminal Justice 
25 Market Street -- CN 085 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Robert Abrams, Attorney General 
Robert L. Hubbard, Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Bureau 
120 Broadway, Suite 2601 
New York, NY 10271 

James C. GUlick, Special Deputy Attorney General 
North Carolina Department of Justice 
P.O. Box 629 
140 Fayetteville Mall 
Raleigh, NC 27602 

Mitchell L. Gentile, Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Section 
65 East State Street 
suite 708 
Columbus, OR 43266-0590 

Jane F. Wheeler 
Assistant Attorney General 
Deputy Chief, General Counsel Division 
Main Place, suite 550 
420 West Main street 
Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
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Andrew E. Aubertine, Assistant Attorney General 
Oregon Department of Justice 
Financial Fraud Section 
100 Justice Building 
Salem, OR 97310 

Eugene F. Waye, Chief Deputy Attorney General 
Antitrust Section 
Office of Attorney General 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
1435 Strawberry Square 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

William K. Moore 
Deputy Attorney General 
P.O. Box 11549 
columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Jeffrey P. Hallem, Assistant Attorney General 
Office of the Attorney General 
500 East capitol 
Pierre, SO 57501-5070 

Perry Allan Craft 
Deputy Attorney General 
450 James Robertson Parkway 
Nashville, TN 37243-0485 

Holly Lee Wiseman, Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Division 
Texas Attorney General's Office 
P.O. Box 12548 
Austin, TX 78711-2548 

Patrice M. Arent, Assistant Attorney General 
State of Utah 
236 State capitol 
Salt Lake City, UT 84114 

Milton A. Marquis, Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust and Consumer Litigation Section 
101 North Eighth Street 
Richmond, VA 23219 
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Carol A. Smith, Assistant Attorney General 
900 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2000 
Seattle, WA 98164 

Robert Wm. Schulenberg, III 
Senior Assistant Attorney General 
Antitrust Division 
812 Quarrier street, Fifth Floor 
Charleston, WV 25301 

Kevin J. O'Connor, Assistant Attorney General 
114 East, State capitol Box 7857 
Madison, WI 53707 
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Counsel for Defendant Sandoz Pharmaceuticals: 

Michael K. Murtaugh, Esq. 
Thomas R. Nelson, Esq. 
Donald J. Hayden, Esq. 
BAKER & MCKENZIE 
One Prudential Plaza 
130 E. Randolph Drive 
chicago, IL 60601 

Daniel R. Shulman, Esq. 
Quentin R. Wittrock, Esq. 
GRAY, PLANT, MOOTY, MOOTY 

& BENNETT, P.A. 
3400 City Center 
33 South sixth Street 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

Robert S. smith, Esq. 
PAUL, WEISS, RIFKIND, 

WHARTON & GARRISON 
1285 Avenue of the Americas 
26th Floor 
New York, NY 10019 
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